
 

 

           

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA - AMENDED 

Monday - January 24, 2022 

5:30 PM 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To be an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin. 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

5:30 p.m. 1. Call to Order 

• Introduction of Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator 

5:31 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval 

5:32 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda Items: Any of the following items may be removed for  

  discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board member or  

  citizen. 

• Approval of December 8, 2021 Minutes 

• Monthly Budget Summary 

• Consideration of Operating Expenses 

• Consideration of Non-Operating Expenses  

5:35 p.m. 4. Legal and Legislative Matters 

5:40 p.m. 5. General Manager and Committee Reports 

• General Manager’s Report 

• Treasurer’s Report 

• Executive Committee Meeting 

o Action on Board Meeting Schedule 

• Taylor Local User’s Group - Letters of Interest and Recommendations 

o Action on Renewal of 2022 Representatives’ terms 

• Watershed Management Planning Committee 

• Grant Committee 

• Education and Outreach Committee 

• Basin Water Supply Information  

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

• Wet Meadows Program 

• Scientific Endeavors 

• Long Lake Stakeholder Work Group 

• Gunnison Basin Roundtable Update – January 17, 2021 Meeting 

• Gunnison River Festival Update 

6:40 p.m. 6. Break 

6:45 p.m. 7. Miscellaneous Matters 

• Infrastructure Bill (Water) 

• Spencer Condo Association Meeting Update 

• Homestake Mine Public Hearing in Saguache County 

• Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet 

• Monthly Energy Production Report – Solar Panels 

• Newspaper Articles from December 2021 and January 2022 

7:00 p.m. 8. Citizen Comments 

7:05 p.m. 9. Future Meetings 

7:10 p.m. 10. Summary of Meeting Action Items   

7:15 p.m. 11. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(CONTINUED ON PAGE 3) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org 

WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE  

REGULAR SEMI-ANNUAL MEETING 
Monday, January 24, 2022 

7:20 p.m. 1. Call to Order 

7:21 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval 

7:23 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed for  

discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board member or 

citizen.  

• Approval of July 27, 2021 Minutes
• Upper Gunnison Water Activity Enterprise 2021 Budget Summary
• Adoption of Resolution 2022-1 to Set Posting Place

• Consideration of Expenses

7:30 p.m. 4. Meridian Lake Reservoir Update 

7:40 p.m. 5. Adoption of 2022 Budget 

7:55 p.m. 6. Citizen Comments 

8:00 p.m. 7. Miscellaneous Matters 

8:10 p.m. 8. Summary of Meeting Action Items 

8:15 p.m. 9. Adjournment 

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  All times are approximate.  

Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are recorded, and action can be taken on any item. The board may address individual 

agenda items at any time or in any order to accommodate the needs of the board and the audience. Persons with special needs due to a 

disability are requested to call the District at (970)641-6065 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   



AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items

3



 

1 

 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, December 8, 2021 

 

 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District conducted a regularly 

scheduled meeting on Wednesday, December 8, 2021 via video/teleconferencing at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Board members present: Rosemary Carroll, Joellen Fonken, Rebie Hazard, Stacy McPhail, Julie Nania, Bill 

Nesbitt, John Perusek and Don Sabrowski  

 

Board members absent:  Michelle Pierce and Andy Spann 

 

Also present: 

 

Isabella Biondini, Gunnison Country Times 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

Jesse Kruthaupt, Trout Unlimited  

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

Sue Uerling, UGRWCD Administrative Assistant/Communications Support Specialist 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Board Vice President Stacy McPhail called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2.      AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director John Perusek seconded approval of the agenda as circulated.  

The motion carried.  

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

Director Sara Bergstrom moved and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the consent agenda 

items.  The motion carried. 

 

4. ADOPTION OF 2022 BUDGET AND RESOLUTIONS 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Joellen Fonken seconded approval of Resolution 2021-05  

to Adopt the 2022 Budget. The motion carried.   

 



2 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Rebie Hazard seconded approval of Resolution 2021-06 to 

Appropriate Sums of Money for the 2022 Budget. The motion carried.   

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director John Perusek seconded approval of Resolution 2021-07 to 

set the Mill Levy at 1.951 mills.  The motion carried.   

5. MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Manager’s Report: 

• General Manager Sonja Chavez reported that she and General Counsel spoke at the Gunnison

County Stockgrowers Association annual meeting on December 8.  Sonja gave a general overview

on the water year and John spoke about the Colorado River Compact.

• Sonja reported that General Counsel John McClow received an email from the Bureau of

Reclamation (BOR) about the Memorandum of Agreement for the development of the hydroelectric

generation facility proposed by Gunnison County Electric Association (GCEA) at the Taylor Park

Dam.  The BOR is now asking to be a party/signor on the Memorandum. John said he does not

believe any of the other parties will have an issue with this so the Memorandum will be updated

accordingly for signature.

• Sonja announced that the Colorado Water Congress will hold their convention January 26-28 in

Aurora.  Directors Nesbitt, McPhail, Nania and Carroll expressed interest.  Sonja asked all directors

to please contact staff by the end of the next week to confirm their attendance so staff can register

participants and make hotel accommodations.

• Sonja showed a poster the District received from Henry Woods about the Red Sky Drum Group

performing their sacred snow dance in Lake City on Saturday, December 18 in the town park.  The

Lake Fork Conservancy is sponsoring the event.  Sonja made a $100 donation for the event on

behalf of the District through the Manger’s Discretionary Fund and said that she will be going.  The

drum group is part of the Ute Mountain Ute Tribe.

Discussion on changing UGRWCD Board Meeting schedule  

General Manager Sonja Chavez reported that she would like input about changing the current Board meeting 

schedule to having some of the meetings every other month with place holders for meetings if needed on the 

months off.  Sonja noted that the current monthly schedule does not allow for adequate time for committees 

to meet and reports to be generated for the Board meeting since as soon as the current Board meeting is over 

and minutes are written, it is time to get the agenda and board packet out for the next meeting.  The Board 

packets must be sent out at least a week in advance.  A graphic of proposed meeting dates for 2022 was 

projected during the meeting.  Director Bill Nesbitt said he felt this matter should be discussed first at an 

Executive Committee meeting scheduled in January. Vice President Stacy McPhail recommended that Board 

members provide their input to Sonja and that action on the dates be delayed until after everyone had time to 

weigh in.   



 

3 

 

A copy of the “Watershed Program Coordinator” job description was provided in the Board packet in 

advance of the meeting.  Director Bill Nesbitt asked if the District should have advertised for the position.  

Sonja said that she conferred with Legal Counsel John McClow who said that advertising was not required.  

Sonja stated that an offer has been made to Cheryl Cwelich and Directors Rosemary Carroll and Stacy 

McPhail said Cheryl was a former UGRWCD intern and an excellent choice.  Director McPhail noted that 

the Board had given Sonja their support at the November Board meeting to move forward with filling the 

position and that it is at Sonja’s discretion as to whom she selects to fill the position.  General Counsel John 

McClow noted that the District did interview two candidates before the position was offered to Cheryl.   

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

There were no citizen comments. 

 

7. FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail referred to the Future Meetings listing provided in the packet and noted that 

the 2022 Draft Board Meeting Schedule is subject to change based on input from Board members.  She 

offered that Board members should reach out directly to Sonja or President Michelle Pierce with any input.   

 

8. SUMMARY OF MEETING ACTION ITEMS 

 

Board members were reminded to let staff know as soon as possible if they want to attend the Colorado 

Water Congress convention January 26-28, 2022. 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez will take input from the Board about changing the Board Meeting Schedule 

for 2022. 

 

Director Rebie Hazard asked if anyone from the District had been in contact with any of the Saguache 

County commissioners about the Homestake Mine reclamation proposal discussed at the November Board 

meeting.  Sonja replied that no one had been in touch yet.  Director Hazard said she had questioned Saguache 

County Commissioner Tim Lovato about the issue and he indicated that the commissioners had been advised 

by Homestake of their plans and that the County was on board with what Homestake had presented.  Rebie 

noted that Tim Lovato is a former water commissioner and he has been following this issue for a long time.  

Director McPhail said she felt it would still be a good idea for the District to reach out to Mr. Lovato and the 

County to be sure they were fully aware of what Homestake’s proposal entails and possible outcomes. 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Board Vice President Stacy McPhail adjourned the December 8, 2021 meeting at 5:56 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 



4 

___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

APPROVED: 

___________________________ 

Stacy McPhail, Vice President 





































































AGENDA ITEM 4
Legal and Legislative Matters



AGENDA ITEM 5
General Manager and Committee 

Reports

9



AGENDA ITEM 5
General Manager's Report



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   UGRWCD Board Members  

FROM:  Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

DATE:  January 14, 2022  

SUBJECT:  General Manager’s Report – January 

 

 

I. Treasurer’s Report – Update by Director Nesbitt. 

 

II. Executive Committee – Meeting scheduled for January 21. A verbal report-out will be 

given by Director Pierce. 

 

III. Taylor Local Users Group – No meetings December 2021 or January 2022.   

 

1. TLUG 2022 Appointments 

Background: The Upper Gunnison District is one of four signatories to the Taylor 

Park Reservoir Operation and Storage Exchange Agreement that was executed in 

August of 1975.  This forms the basis under which the release patterns from Taylor 

Park Reservoir are determined annually. Each year, the District seeks input and 

direction from local users of the Taylor River, Taylor Park Reservoir, and the main 

stem of the Gunnison River above Blue Mesa as to how the reservoir operations can 

best be optimized for stream fishery, reservoir fishery and flatwater recreation, 

irrigation, and rafting and boating purposes in the Upper Gunnison Basin. This group 

of users is referred to as the Taylor Local Users Group or TLUG. 

 

There are two terms expiring this year on the TLUG, therefore the Upper Gunnison 

District Board must appoint two citizen members to two-year terms on the Taylor Local 

Users Group.  Advertisement for the open citizen members seats were placed in local 

newspapers. All persons appointed must be residents within the District and 

experienced and knowledgeable about river conditions along the Taylor and Gunnison 

Rivers. 

 

Below are the two representative seats open and the citizens who submitted letters of 

interest to serve on the TLUG: 

 

• Flat water recreation – Rory Birdsey (current representative) 

• Rafting / boating – Marc Schumacher (current representative), Kestrel Kunz, 

and Rob Childerston. 



ACTION REQUIRED BY THE BOARD: Appoint citizen members for flat water 

recreation and rafting / boating to the TLUG.  

*Letters of interest along with any letters of support received by the District are included 

in the board meeting packet. 

 

IV. Watershed Management Planning Committee 

 

1. Municipal Activities Supported by the UGRWCD: The District will be working 

with the City of Gunnison to address improvements to their irrigation conveyance 

and distribution system.  The project: 

a) Begins at the City Ditch diversion off the Gunnison River north of town and 

includes diversion improvements;  

b) Continues downstream to the headgate just behind the Paintbrush housing 

development and will include evaluation of alternatives for open and closed 

ditch system with trash screen that will lead to improvement in irrigation water 

management; and 

c) Proceeds through the City of Gunnison and includes culvert replacement under 

residential street crossings and Highway 50 street crossings and ends where the 

water enters the Gunnison River again.   

 

Activities anticipated in February include the development of a scope of work and 

budget estimate for pre-feasibility level planning for the entire project broken out 

by entity responsibility.  The District will pay for engineering of system 

optimization improvements from the upstream diversion off the Gunnison River to 

the three-way splitter box behind Paintbrush utilizing WMP funds. The City will 

pay for planning / engineering associated with culvert replacement across City 

residential streets and Highway 50. With regard to financial support for the 

comprehensive project.  

 

2. Watershed and Forest Health Sub-Group 

 

a) Watershed Health and Forest Fire Zones of Concern (JW Associates): 

The watershed hazard analysis is complete with the exception of revisions to 

the wildfire hazard modeling.  JW Associates is currently preparing different 

modeling scenarios to present to the District and the Upper Gunnison Shared 

Stewardship Council.  The zones of concern have been drafted and revisions 

are being made at this time.  The climate change analysis is also underway 

and should be available by the end of January for input. 

 

b) Watershed Science & Design Kick-Off Meeting: Data collection is ongoing 

in the East and Taylor River basin study reaches. The majority of the work 

effort at this time is focused on the Taylor watershed due to the availability of 



data and the existence of other on-going/concurrent efforts of other 

stakeholders in this basin.  LiDAR data is being processed into relative 

elevation models.  Assessment sheets are also being developed by Watershed 

Science for conducting on-the- ground river reach assessments.  These 

assessments will be done with the help of the WMP Team. 

 

c) Wetland Inventory & Mapping Update Meeting: No progress to date. 

Anticipate a meeting in February between the District and Colorado Natural 

Heritage Program wetland experts focused on development of a scope of 

work. 

 

3. Agricultural System Op Planning and Infrastructure Assessments 

 

a) 2021 Gunnison River Restoration and Irrigation Infrastructure 

Improvement Project: The issue around the trash boom not floating has been 

addressed.  As a reminder, the pipe supplier sent the wrong gauge pipe, so the 

contractor modified the boom by securing two PVC pipes on opposite sides of 

the heavy gauge pipe in order to make the boom float. It appeared to be 

functioning at low flows. An inspection of the boom will take place again in 

the spring at high flow.  Staff are working on the final report and 

reimbursement request to the Colorado River District Community Funding 

Partnership Program. 

 

b) Storage: The WMP Team is still actively examining potential storage sites. 

 

4. Watershed & Stream Management Planning Report 

 

Staff continue to make progress on report preparation.  To date, Phase 2 sub-basin 

hydrology and basin characterization sections are written (Taylor, Gunnison 

Mainstem, Tomichi/Cochetopa, and Cebolla).  The Taylor River Basin report is 

the most complete to date and was the first basin we selected to develop using our 

new report template.  Bruce Bartleson (retired Western Colorado University 

geology professor) was also hired by the District to write the basin geological 

summary descriptions.  

 

5. Watershed Management Planning Stakeholder Outreach 

 

Stakeholder outreach planning for Phase 2 sub-watersheds will be the focus for 

the WMP Team during the months of February through early May.  More 

information will be provided as plans solidify. 

 

6. Environmental Assessments 

 



Now that much of the supporting preliminary assessments for agricultural 

infrastructure, stream fluvial geomorphology, watershed and forest health, zones 

of concern (will include protection of unique habitat or species), water-quality, 

etc., are underway, the WMP Team can now turn our attention to developing a 

plan for pulling together additional information related to environmental values 

we wish to protect or improve.  Developing a plan, finding the right consultants 

and getting this work underway will be the WMP Team focus over the next few 

months.  A final plan will be, in part, dependent upon outcomes from the forest 

health, wetland, and geo-fluvial assessments. 

 

7. Recreational Assessments 

 

Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) continue to process a significant amount of 

data from the creel survey that took place this summer and early fall.  We 

anticipate a draft report sometime in the next few months. 

 

District staff also met with Gunnison County Public Works staff to discuss plans 

for improvements to Drop 2.  Commissioners approved expenditures for pre-

feasibility planning and engineering.  We hope to have a preliminary plan and 

cost estimate by the end of March so that we can then move forward with 

preparation of grant applications. 

 

V. Grant Committee 

 

No meeting during the month of January. Please see Grant Program Memorandum in 

Board packet provided by Beverly Richards (Water Resource Specialist).   

 

VI. Education & Outreach Committee 

 

No meeting during the month of December 2021 or January 2022.  Please see 

Education and Outreach Memorandum in Board packet provided by Sue Uerling 

(Communications Specialist / Administrative Assistant) for the monthly update. 

 

VII. Basin Water Supply  

 

Please see the Water Supply Memorandum in the Board packet from Beverly 

Richards. 

 

Note: There is an Aspinall Unit Operations Coordination meeting on January 20th at 

1pm.  The meeting will be conducted remotely. If there is any new information to 

share with the Board, a verbal update will be provided by the General Manager. 

Interested Directors can also contact the General Manager for the remote invite. 

 



VIII. Wet Meadows Program 

 

Please see Wet Meadows Program Memorandum prepared by Cheryl Cwelich 

(Watershed Program Coordinator). 

 

2. Other: The USGS informed the District that there were icing issues with the stream 

gage below Taylor Reservoir which they were addressing.  For other updates on 

Taylor Park Reservoir and snowpack in the Taylor River basin, please see the Water 

Supply Memorandum prepared by Beverly Richards.   

 

IX. Scientific Endeavors – Update from Director Carroll 

 

X. Long Lake Stakeholder Work Group – Update from Director Carroll 

 

XI. Gunnison Basin Round Table Update – Update from Director Nania 

 

XII. Gunnison River Festival Update – Update from Director Fonken 

 

XIII. Miscellaneous Updates (Staff and Board Members) 

 

1. Infrastructure Bill (Water) – Please see attached Memorandum from the 

General Manager. 

 

2. Proposal for an Upper Gunnison Headwaters Wetland Mitigation Bank 

At the time of the writing of this memo, the General Manager had not received a 

call back from Travis Morse (Senior Project Manager, Northwestern Colorado 

Branch, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers) regarding an update on the status of the 

Gunnison Headwater Wetland Mitigation Bank proposal.  A verbal update will be 

given to the Board at the January meeting. 

 

3. Homestake Pitch Uranium Mining Proposal – Verbal update from the General 

Manager regarding Saguache County Commissioner meeting on January 18, 

2022. 

 

4. Status of Office Renovation for the Watershed Program Coordinator  

The District is in the process of renovating the copy room into an office space for 

Ms. Cwelich.  The copier and cabinets were moved to the front receptionist area.  

To date, the dry wall has been repaired where the cabinets were attached, and the 

entire room was repainted.  Office furniture was ordered and the District is now 

waiting for the arrival and installation of the carpet and office door.  We 

anticipate work to be finished by the end of January. 

 

5. Spencer Avenue Business Park Condo Association 



 

The Condo Association board had its annual meeting on January 6th, 2022.  One 

of the primary decision items coming out of that meeting was to not delay roof 

repairs another season and to move forward with seeking bid requests for the 

work.   

 

For additional information, please see meeting minutes included in your board 

packet. 



AGENDA ITEM 5
Treasurer's Report



AGENDA ITEM 5
Executive Committee Report



AGENDA ITEM 5
Taylor Local User's Group Representative 

Letters and Action



Date: December 21, 2021 
 

To: UGRWCD Board Members 

 

From: Mark A. Schumacher 

            

Re: Participation in Taylor Local Users Group  
 

 

Dear Board Members, 

 

Please take under consideration my desire to represent the boating/rafting user group.   

 

                I have participated in the process since it’s inception in 1992.  I have boated the Taylor Reservoir, Taylor 

River, and Gunnison River since 1972. I currently own and operate Three Rivers Resort and Outfitting, which serves 

the public through guided kayaking, fishing and rafting. Through my business I talk to thousands of persons each 

summer who are boating on the Taylor Reservoir, Taylor River and Gunnison River. These boaters are a mixture of 

commercial and private users, residents and visitors. I understand what each type of boater desires, whether it’s 

kayaking, canoeing, rafting or fishing. 

 

               During my tenure as a board member of the UGRWCD I helped revise and refine the Taylor Dam operating 

criteria as issues and conditions changed. I have a good understanding of the ’75 agreement and the district’s “2nd fill” 

water right. For years I represented the district at the “four parties” meeting in Montrose every May. 

 

                I look forward in trying to understand the implications and operational changes considering the new 

operating agreement/stipulation with Taylor Placer Ltd.. Understanding the agreement and its impact on the historical 

operations and local user groups is a challenge. 

 

                I am also a private landowner and fisherman on the Taylor River. I have a good understanding how 

operations of Taylor Dam affects all user groups. Because of this understanding I feel that I can give input to the user 

group to find consensus on operations under all conditions presented. 

 

                Thank-you for your consideration. 

 

Sincerely,   

 

 

 Mark A. Schumacher 

 

 

                                                                                                              

                                                                                                              



From: Sonja Chavez  
Sent: Monday, January 10, 2022 6:22 PM 
To: Sue Uerling <sue@ugrwcd.org> 
Subject: FW: TLUG appointments 
 
Letter of support for Mark Schumacher 
 

Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

210 West Spencer, Suite 2B 

Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Office: 970-641-6065 

Mobile: 970-596-4066 

Website: www.ugrwcd.org 
 

 
 
Sent: Monday, January 10, 2022 6:03 PM 
To: Sonja Chavez <schavez@ugrwcd.org> 
Subject: Fwd: TLUG appointments 
 
To the UGRWCD Board, 
We are writing to support Mark Schumacher as the representative of the TLUG rafting/boating interests. 
Mark has the knowledge of the river flows, the presence in the boating community, and works right 
there in Taylor Canyon seeing what is going on.  His history on this user group shows he can consider the 
other water users needs, and help strike the balance that is needed to benefit all the users within the 
parameters for optimal reservoir operations. 
Mark has the experience and patience to work with this diverse and committed group, and we 
appreciate his dedication over the years. 
 
Thanks for your time, 
Ches Russell 
Scenic River Tours, Inc. 
 

Taylor Canyon Boathouse Office: 7049 Co Rd 742, Almont, CO 81210 
Gunnison Office: 703 W. Tomichi Ave Gunnison, CO 81230 
Mailing: PO Box 271 Almont, CO 81210 
Phone: 970-641-3131 
info@scenicrivertours.com 
www.scenicrivertours.com 
 
 

mailto:sue@ugrwcd.org
http://www.ugrwcd.org/
mailto:schavez@ugrwcd.org
mailto:info@scenicrivertours.com
http://www.scenicrivertours.com/


From: Taylor Park Marina
To: Sonja Chavez; Sue Uerling
Subject: TLUG Position
Date: Tuesday, January 4, 2022 9:28:02 AM

Good morning and Happy New Year!  I was writing to confirm that I would like to continue
my position on the TLUG board for the next duration and commitment.  Please let me know if
I need to send in a formal letter of intent. Thanks so much and looking forward to the new year
and hopefully a great water season 

Ryan Birdsey
Taylor Park Marina 

mailto:taylorparkmarina@gmail.com
mailto:schavez@ugrwcd.org
mailto:sue@ugrwcd.org


January 10, 2022 
 
RE: Request for Letters of Interest Taylor Local Users Group Process  
 
Dear Sonja,  
 
I am writing to express my interest in joining the Taylor Local Users Group as the rafting and boating 
representative. I am both personally and professionally invested in streamflows on the Taylor and 
Gunnison Rivers and I have a depth of knowledge regarding public and commercial use of these local 
rivers.  
 
I have lived in Crested Butte for 4.5 years during which I have become intimately familiar with our local 
rivers, paddling them for enjoyment and as a professional kayak instructor. I initially decided to move 
here after joining local paddlers at “Taylor Tuesday”. After meeting the local paddling community and 
paddling the Taylor River I fell in love with the valley and moved here promptly after. My love for our 
local rivers and watersheds has only grown since then.  
 
In my role as S. Rockies Associate Stewardship Director for American Whitewater, I lead local and 
regional water policy and river management projects. One of those recent projects was working with the 
UGRWCD on developing a Recreational Use Study and Boatable Days Tool for the Gunnison Watershed 
Management Plan process on the Taylor and Gunnison Rivers. Through that project, I worked directly 
with rafting outfitters, angling outfitters, and the local river recreation community on identifying 
acceptable and optimal flows for these river segments. As a representative on the TLUG, I would be able 
to help inform flow-related discussions with the Boatable Days Tool in addition to my personal 
knowledge and experience of river flows.  
 
In addition to my role with American Whitewater, I am a founding kayak instructor with the City of 
Gunnison’s Youth Kayaking Program. The Gunnison and Taylor Rivers provide the perfect learning 
environment to teach whitewater kayaking and safety skills to local youth in the valley. The program is 
expanding and we plan to offer women’s courses and other adult courses in the future. Instruct 
 
Using my professional and personal experience of river flows and recreational experiences, I would fairly 
represent both outfitters and public boaters on the TLUG. My broad network within the local boating 
community and relationship with rafting outfitters and instructors would help inform and strengthen my 
input to TLUG discussions.  
 
Thank you for considering my letter of interest to join the Taylor Local Users Group as the 
boating/rafting representative. I look forward to hearing back from you and it would be an honor to join 
the TLUG.  
 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Kestrel Kunz  
S. Rockies Associate Stewardship Director  
American Whitewater  
619 Maroon Ave. #2   
Crested Butte, CO 81224  



 

WESTERN COLORADO UNIVERSITY   |   1 WESTERN WAY   |   GUNNISON, CO 81231   |   970.943.0120   |   WESTERN.EDU 

 
 

 

January 10th, 2022 
 
Attn: UGRWCD 
 
Dear UGRWCD,  
 
I am writing to recommend Kestrel Kunz as a local user group member to represent the 
rafting/boating interests along the Taylor and Gunnison Rivers above Blue Mesa Reservoir. 
Ms. Kunz is an energetic, knowledgeable and fair individual and I believe that she would be 
an excellent and contributing member of the UGRWCD. 
 
I know Ms. Kunz as a local boater through my own recreation kayaking the upper Taylor 
River regularly during the summer months. She is also a (non-traditional) student in my 
physics course at Western, and therefore I know her on a more professional basis though 
this interaction. I would like to recommend her for this position base on the following list of 
qualifications that I am aware of: 

• She is professionally engaged in local watershed issues through her employment with 
the American Whitewater organization. The Taylor river has been a particular focus 
of this work. I was a participant at the Taylor river race and the festivities that were 
tied directly to the Gunnison whitewater festival and I believe were supported through 
her work with American Whitewater.  

• Ms. Kunz has written a number of letters (which were published) to the editor of 
Gunnison Times regarding the role of the Taylor river in the recent GMUG 
plan/proposal.  

• Ms. Kunz has a patient and kind professional demeanor when working with others. I 
have seen this as she works with others in the laboratory sections in the course she 
is taking at Western. I can tell she would be a good contributing colleague.   

• Because of her professional work with the river and familiarity with the private boater 
community, I believe that Ms. Kunz would be able to equally represent both private 
and commercial interests in the use of the Taylor and Gunnison rivers and work to 
ensure that all interested parties have fair access to this resource. 

• Ms. Kunz is interested in pursuing a career in watershed management issues and I 
believe that this position would an excellent experience for her. As such, I believe that 
you would benefit for the enthusiasm that she would bring to the table.  

I hope you will choose Kestrel Kunz to represent the rafting/boating interests along the Taylor 
and Gunnison Rivers above Blue Mesa Reservoir. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
John Mason (970-901-6947) 
Professor of Physics  
Western Colorado University 
jmason@western.edu 

http://www.western.edu/
mailto:jmason@western.edu




AGENDA ITEM 5
Watershed Management Planning 

Committee



1 
220110 Summary WMP Committee_final 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM:  Watershed Management Planning Committee 
 
DATE:  January 10, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Watershed Management Planning Committee Meeting Summary 

 
A meeting of the committee was held on January 10, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. 
 
Stacy McPhail, Julie Nania, Jesse Kruthaupt, Sara Bergstrom, Nancy Johnston, Erin Wilson, Bella 
Biondini, Mike Tarantino, Ryan Unterreiner, Sonja Chavez, Sue Uerling, Beverly Richards and Cheryl 
Cwelich were in attendance. Rosemary Carroll was absent. 
 
Agenda topics included updates on the Wet Meadows Program, watershed/wildfire and geo-fluvial 
assessments, County Whitewater Park recreational improvements, City of Gunnison municipal needs 
assessment, Phase 2 report status, and water quality and surface water monitoring program update as it 
pertains to the Homestake Uranium Pitch Mine in Sargents.  As a result of these discussions the following 
action and discussion items were identified: 
 
Action and Discussion Items 
 

• Staff will provide an update on the 20th annual Gunnison River Festival at the next committee 
meeting and see if Joellen Fonken (Director) can join the next WMP meeting 

• Staff will contact Katie Jagt with Watershed Science and Design to begin discussions about 
approach to on the ground project identification.  This discussion will continue at next committee 
meeting. 

• Staff will continue working with the City of Gunnison to support fund raising needs for 
improvements to the City Ditch system. 

• Staff will continue to work with the County on fundraising in support of Whitewater Park drop 
structure safety issues and improvements. 

• Nancy Johnston will contact Dan Brauch with CPW to find out status of creel survey. 
• Sonja Chavez will speak with Tim Lodato of Saguache County to determine the next course of 

action regarding the Homestake Mine meeting.  This may involve attending the meeting virtually 
or in person. 

• Staff will continue to compile report sections for the Phase 2 WMP report.   
• Staff will continue to provide update on funding sources through the infrastructure bill. 

 
Next Meeting 
 
Watershed Management Planning Committee – February 14, 2022  – 1:30 p.m. 
 
Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:15 p.m. 



AGENDA ITEM 5
Grant Committee Report



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist 

 
DATE: January 14, 2022 

 
SUBJECT: Grant Program Information 
 

For 2022, the Upper Gunnison Board of Directors budgeted $200,000 for the Grant Program.  We have 
also dedicated $50,000 from unspent grant funds during 2015-2020 to support engineering needs within the 
District including requests coming through the grant program.  This will be the thirteenth year of the 
program and we look forward to the projects that will be part of this year’s program. 
 
Timeline: 
 
The timeline for the program is as follows: 
 

• January 1, 2022 – Grant Program opens 
 

• January 13 & 18, 2022 – Pre-application webinars provided with detailed information about the 
program. 

 
• February 15, 2022 – Grant Program applications are due by the close of business (5:00 p.m.) 

 
• February 15-March 1, 2022 – Staff and Committee will evaluate applications and develop 

recommendations 
 

• March 2022 – Recommendations will be presented to Board of Directors for their approval 
 

• April 1, 2022 – Award letters will go out and contracting will begin 
 
Information and forms associated with the program can be found on our website at 
https://ugrwcd.org/grant-funding/. 

https://ugrwcd.org/grant-funding/


AGENDA ITEM 5
Education and Outreach Update



1 

220112 Education Committee Update 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: UGRWCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Sue Uerling, Adm. Asst./Comm. Support Specialist 

DATE: January 13, 2022 

SUBJECT: Education Committee Update 

With the start of 2022, the following are action items that have commenced or been completed 

based on the 2022 Education Action Plan: 

Action Items 

• Radio Advertising:

o The District’s underwriting for KBUT has been updated to include a more

“winter-based” message.

o New copy for radio ads to run on KEJJ and its sister stations is being developed. 
These new ads will be recorded at the end of the month to begin running in 
February and throughout the busiest portion of ski season during February and 
March.

o New Outreach – We have contacted KVNF, a public radio station that serves 
Lake City and the surrounding area and are developing underwriting copy and 
scheduling spots to run for 13 weeks during the busy summer months.

• Newsprint Advertising:

o The weekly streamflow/reservoir elevations/snowpack ads are running in the 
Gunnison Country Times and Crested Butte News.  The Gunnison Country Times 
did increase their weekly rate by $2 per display ad, which has been accounted for 
in the budget.

o The weekly streamflow/Lake San Cristobal elevation/Slumgullion snowpack ads 
are running the SilverWorld newspaper.

• Collaboration with other Water Groups in the District:

o We have contacted the Gunnison Rotary Club and the Colorado Parks and 
Wildlife Division about possibly collaborating with them on fishing tournaments 
at Blue Mesa Reservoir in 2022.  A meeting will be held with the Gunnison 
Rotary Club on January 21, 2022.

• Water Message Promotional Items:

o The District has submitted a list of several promotional products that could be 
imprinted with the District’s logo to Kirsten Dickey at OffCenter Designs. 
Kirsten is checking current pricing and availability for these items and will get 
back with us before the end of January.

• River Clean-Up Program:



 

2 

220112 Education Committee Update 

o Staff have discussed the possibility of the District hosting a River Clean-up Party 

at a date prior to the Gunnison River Festival (GRF) June 10-12, 2022.  It was 

discussed that it could possibly take place at the same time of the City of 

Gunnison Community Clean-Up Day on Saturday, April 23, 2022 (depending on 

snowpack) at the Whitewater Park.  All volunteers in the city-wide clean-up 

would be invited to the Whitewater Park for the clean-up, followed by a lunch and 

possibly live music provided by the District.  Volunteers also could be given a 

promotional item with the District logo and marketing materials advertising the 

20th Anniversary Gunnison River Festival and UGRWCD.  There was discussion 

that a clean-up could also take place at the Shady Island campground/parking 

either the same date or at a later date.  GRF Director Joellen Fonken will discuss 

the concept with the GRF Board of Directors. 

• Photography Intern John Murphy, a senior communications major at Western University, 

will being his internship duties on January 18, 2022. 

 

Completed Action Items 

 

• Mayors and Managers: 

o General Manager Sonja Chavez gave a presentation entitled “A Look Back at 

Water Year 2021” via Zoom video/teleconferencing on Thursday, July 6, 2022 at 

noon. 

• 250 Copies of the children’s book Drop: An Adventure through the Water Cycle by 

Emily Kate Moon have been ordered from publisher Penguin Random House LLC.  The 

books are scheduled to ship no later than January 28, 2022 and shipping times could be 

up to four to six weeks, per Penguin Random House. 

• The UGRWCD’s Winter 2021-22 Newsletter was emailed to the newsletter email list of 

175 members on January 7, 2022 and promoted on our website, Facebook page and 

Twitter. 

 



AGENDA ITEM 5
Basin Water Supply Information



1 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist 

 
DATE: January 14, 2022 

 
SUBJECT: Basin Water Supply Information 
 

The information supplied as part of this memorandum is a monthly feature and includes information about 
drought conditions in the basin, snowpack information from NRCS, reservoir storage, and the Upper 
Gunnison Cloudseeding Program.   
 
Drought Conditions: 
 
According to the Drought Monitor at drought.gov as of January 4, 2022, drought conditions are slowly 
worsening throughout the state with 22% of the state now experiencing extreme (D3) drought conditions.  
This is significantly worse than the November 2, 2021, report where only 6% of the state was experiencing 
extreme drought conditions.  This is primarily on the eastern slope as precipitation has been almost non-
existent since November.  These conditions are reflected in the current conditions map for the state 
provided below.    

 
 
 



2 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

Gunnison County 
 
Gunnison County fared much better the last month of the year.  According to the U.S. Drought Monitor, 
dated November 2, 2021,  3% of Gunnison County was showing Abnormally Dry (D0) conditions, 68% 
Moderate (D1) conditions, and 28% Severe (D2) conditions which is some improvement from November 
2020 when the county was 100% in Severe to Exceptional drought conditions.  As of January 4, 2022, the 
conditions in the county are now 25% Abnormally Dry (D0), 45% Moderate (D1), and 29% Severe (D2) 
This is reflected in the current conditions map for Gunnison County provided below. 
 

 
 

Short-term drought conditions for Gunnison County are reflected in the figure below. This figure shows the 
result of substantial precipitation in the basin during December where drought conditions are entirely in the 
wet categories for the first time in several years.  However, the long-term drought forecast shows the 
county and surrounding areas returning to abnormally dry conditions.  This is also the case for most of the 
western part of the state. 
  
 



3 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 
 

As stated above, precipitation in Gunnison County over the last six weeks or so has helped tremendously 
with precipitation numbers ranging from 150% to 300% for the entire county.  This is reflected in the 
graphic below. 

 



4 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

Hinsdale County 

According to the U.S. Drought Monitor, dated November 2, 2021,  100% of Hinsdale County was 
experiencing Abnormally Dry (D0) or Moderate (D1)conditions.  As of January 4, 2022, 100% of the 
county is now in either Moderate (D1) or Severe (D2).  This is reflected in the current conditions map for 
Hinsdale County provided below. 
 

 

Short-term drought conditions for Hinsdale County are reflected in the figure below. This figure shows that 
a good portion of the county was neither wet nor dry, which is indicated by the area shown as white and a 
small portion in the southern part of the county was abnormally wet.  However, the long-term drought 
forecast shows the county and surrounding areas returning to severe to extreme drought conditions. 



5 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 

Precipitation in Hinsdale County over the last six weeks or so has helped with numbers ranging from 100% 
to 200% for the entire county and surrounding areas, see figure below.  However, the SNOTEL site at 
Slumgullion is currently only showing 79% of average snowpack for the year.   



6 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 

Saguache County 

Current conditions in Saguache County have not fared as well as Gunnison and Hinsdale County and this is 
the case with much of the upper Rio Grande River basin.  The entire county is now listed as experiencing 
Severe (D2) or Extreme (D3) condition.  This is a significant change from conditions that existed in 
November where the entire  of the county was in Abnormally Dry (44 %) to Severe (.63%) conditions.  
This is reflected in the current conditions figure below. 



7 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 

Short-term drought conditions for Saguache County are reflected in the figure below. This figure shows 
that the northern part of the county remains neither wet nor dry, but the southern part shows that drought 
conditions remain ranging from Abnormally Dry to  Extreme in the most southeastern portion of the 
county.  The long-range forecast indicates that Saguache County will likely return to 100% Severe (D2) to 
Exceptional (D4) drought conditions. 



8 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 

Precipitation in Saguache County over the last six weeks or so has helped with precipitation numbers 
ranging from 100% to 300% of normal.  However, the south and eastern part of the county remained dry 
ranging from no precipitation to 75% of normal.  The snowpack for this area is currently at 94% of normal 
which is also impacting neighboring basins. 

 



9 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 

Reservoir Storage 

Reservoir storage in the Gunnison Basin is at 52% of full.  The reservoirs in the Upper Gunnison Basin, 
Taylor and Blue Mesa, are at 55% and 28% respectively.  This is reflected in the tea-cup diagram below 
dated January 11. 



10 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 

 

Aspinall Unit Operations: 

This update was provided by the Bureau of Reclamation on their Aspinall Operations website and is dated 
December 21, 2021.   

The unregulated inflow volume in November to Blue Mesa was 26,536 acre-feet (88 percent of 
average). Unregulated Inflow volumes forecasted for Blue Mesa for the next three months (December, 
January and February) are projected to be: 19,000 acre-feet (76 percent of average), 18,000 acre-feet (75 
percent of average) and 16,000 acre-feet (73 percent of average), respectively. The December 24-Month 
Study is reflective of these new forecasts. The 2022 median water year unregulated inflow volume is 
projected to be 689,000 acre-feet (74 percent of average).  The water supply period (April-July) for 2022 is 
projected to be 480,000 acre-feet of unregulated inflow (75 percent of average).  

In August, September and part of October, releases were increased in response to a continual declining dry 
hydrologic condition for the Colorado River system.  This drought operation was implemented under the 
Upper Basin Drought Response Operations Agreement.  The intent of this operation was to support Lake 
Powell water levels critical to maintaining hydropower operations.  

Blue Mesa did not fill in water year 2021 (Colorado River Basin Forecast Center Colorado Climate and 
Drought Update presented on October 11). The reservoir is unlikely to fill in water year 2022 unless we 
maintain substantial (i.e., well above average) snowpack through March and April.  Blue Mesa reached a 
peak elevation of 7,464.28 feet on June 22, 2021. The elevation reached a low elevation 7429.49 feet on 
November 1, 2021, with a storage level of 208,761 acre-feet (25% of full capacity).  The elevation is now 
increasing due to precipitation events that occurred in December and early January.  



11 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

The next Aspinall Operations Group meeting will be held on January 20, 2022, at 1:00 pm MST.  The 
meeting will be held virtually.   

Taylor Park Reservoir Operations: 

The Bureau of Reclamation provided an update of Taylor Park Reservoir operations using the January 1 
forecast from the Colorado Basin River Forecast Center.  This forecast indicated that there will be 98,000 
acre-feet of runoff flowing into the reservoir which is 104% of average.  This runoff forecast put the year 
type in the Average Year category.  The requirement for this year type category is to maintain a spring 
peak release of 445 cfs for a period of 5 days.  Using this information would result in an end of year 
content of 70,000 acre-feet in the reservoir.  This preliminary operations plan shows the reservoir filling to 
a maximum seasonal content of 92,900 acre-feet which is 87% full.  Releases from the reservoir continue 
at the winter flow rate of 72.5 cfs and will continue at that level until March. 

Snowpack in the Taylor Park watershed is currently at 130% of normal with December snow accumulation 
at 227% of average for the entire Upper Gunnison River basin.  The best snow conditions exist in the 
northern part of the basin particularly around the East River and Taylor River watersheds.   

Meridian Lake Reservoir and Lake San Cristobal Update: 

The current elevation (October 19) for Meridian Lake Reservoir is 9605.48 which is 634.9 acre-feet of 
storage.  This is down from the August level of 9606.15 or 676.2 acre-feet of storage.  The level was 
reduced in part due to releases made from the lake to augment the in-stream flow call which ran for a total 
of 41 days, August-October. 

The current elevation (January 12) for Lake San Cristobal is 8994.17 which is down slightly from the 
November 1 reading of 8994.63.  The flows out of the reservoir are currently at 13.9 cfs.  We spoke with 
Dan Brauch with CPW on the flows not meeting the winter rate of the instream flow and his response is 
below: 
 
Since the base flow period through the winter is pretty long and we do not have a lot of stored water to 
work with to benefit the fishery, I would not recommend trying to bump flows up to meet the 20 cfs, but 
would also want to be sure we are maintaining base flows by passing through inflows to maintain stream 
habitat downstream of Lake San Cristobal, especially since we are currently not meeting the 20 cfs. 

Lake Powell Update: 
 
The Upper Basin Drought Response Operations Agreement (DROA) provisions to protect a target 
elevation at Lake Powell of 3,525 feet were completed in October 2021. The additional 161 thousand acre-
feet (kaf) releases from the upstream initial units of the Colorado River Storage Project Act began in July 
and ended in October 2021. The table below contains the observed DROA releases: 



12 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 

The releases detailed above are in addition to the already established releases determined by operational 
plans for each of the identified facilities. The additional delivery of 161 kaf is equivalent to Lake Powell’s 
elevation of approximately 2.56 feet. 

The unregulated inflow volume to Lake Powell during November was 346 kaf (83% of average) . The 
release volume from Glen Canyon Dam in November was 500 kaf. The end of November elevation and 
storage of Lake Powell were 3,541.84 feet (158 feet from full pool) and 7.02 million acre-feet (maf) (29% 
of live capacity), respectively. 

Effective January 1, 2022, the Bureau of Reclamation began monthly operational adjustment at Glen 
Canyon Dam.  This was done to take initial steps to protect the reservoir’s target elevation of 3,525 feet.  
As of January 5, Lake Powell’s water surface elevation measured 3,536 feet which is just 11 feet above the 
target elevation.  Without the changes to monthly water releases, the reservoir’s elevation was projected to 
steadily decline below the target elevation through the winter months. 

The monthly volume of water released from Glen Canyon Dam is being adjusted to hold back 350 kaf of 
water in Lake Powell from January to April when inflow to the reservoir is low.  The same amount of 
water will then be released to Lake Mead between June and September after the spring runoff occurs.  The 
annual volume of water released from Glen Canyon is unchanged by these adjustments. 

According to the Bureau, making these adjustments is essential to protect Lake Powell from dropping to 
critically low elevation levels.  Although the basin had substantial snowstorms in December, these are still 
necessary to protect the elevation in Lake Powell.  This modified release pattern was put into action 
following meetings with basin partners including basin state, Tribes, federal agencies, non-governmental 
organizations, and water managers. 

Water year 2022 in the Colorado River Basin began with a wetter-than-normal October, but it was 
followed by the second-driest November on record and resulted in a loss of 1.5 maf of inflow for Lake 
Powell compared to the previous month’s projections.  December projections showed the reservoir 
dropping below the target elevation as early as February 2022.While the basin recently experienced 
substantial snowpack, critically low reservoir levels coupled with uncertainty about future snowpack 
necessitated action.  Reclamation will closely monitor the basin’s hydrology and will release updated 
projections as they become available (Bureau of Reclamation News Release dated January 7, 2022). 



13 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

Cloudseeding Report (North American Weather Consultants; NAWC) & SWE in the Snowpack: 

Cloudseeding efforts began again on November 15, 2021, with little cloudseeding being done in the last 
half of the month.  For December the weather pattern was categorized as wet and active across the 
Gunnison Basin.  There were several moderate storms and a few stronger storms occurring in that time 
frame.  According the NAWC report dated January 4, 2022, these storms were in a southwest flow pattern 
which is less favorable for using the remote generator located at Lake Irwin, so this site was not used as 
much as some others.  The Colorado Climate Center stated that Schofield Pass had its wettest 10-day 
stretch on record in December. 

Table 1 below shows SWE for the water year as of January 1, 2022.   

 
  Measurement 

Site 
Snow Water Equivalent (inch) Water Year Precipitation (inch) 
1-1-22 Percent of Average 1-1-22 Percent of Average 

Butte 8.7 158 9.8 140 
Schofield Pass 23.5 184 25.6 194 

Park Cone 7.3 182 7.3 138 
Porphyry Creek 8.6 139 9.8 158 

Slumgullion 5.4 83 5.6 85 
Upper Gunnison 

Basin %  149  143 

As of January 1, 2022, snow water equivalent in the Upper Gunnison Basin was above normal, with a 
basin-wide average of 149%.  Water year precipitation was also above normal, at an average of 143%. The 
Colorado Climate Center stated that Schofield Pass had its wettest 10-day stretch on record in December. 

The figure below summarizes SWE for the entire Gunnison River Basin as of January 10, 2022.  This 
information is provided by NRCS.  The graph represents snowpack as the current percent of normal (142), 
the current percent in comparison to last year (204), and the current percent for years 1991-2020 (66).   



14 
220114 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 

 

 

Think More Snow! 

 



AGENDA ITEM 5
Wet Meadows Project Update



 

1 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_01.14.22.CC 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  UGRWCD Board of Directors  

FROM: Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator 

DATE: January 14, 2022  

SUBJECT: Wet Meadows Program Update 

 

 
With the start of 2022, the following are action items that have commenced or been completed in 

the Wet Meadows Restoration and Resiliency Building Program (WMRRBP): 

 

Completed Action Items 

 

• Onboarding of new coordinator 

• Scope of Work for Cheryl Cwelich transition to Coordinator 

• BLM L19 grant for Silt-Bohr Flats 

o Submission of Progress Financial Report and ASAP Draw 

• New Project Planning Templates Developed 

o Project Site Planning  

o Contractor/Crew Calendar 

• 2022 Kick-off Wet Meadows Planning Meeting: 

o 2022 Restoration Construction Sites:  

o BLM - Upper Cottonwood Gulch, Lower Cottonwood Gulch, Monson 

Gulch, Long Gulch, Chance Gulch, Sagehen Gulch, Wolf Creek Swale, 

Upper Willow Creek, Sapinero Mesa, Signal Peak  

o USFS - Black Sage Pass 

o CPW - Van Tuyl SWA & Miller Ranch SWA  

o Ute Mountain Ute – Pine Crest Ranch  

o Draft of the 2022 WMRRBP Vision, Objectives and Goals 

 

Action Items 

 

• 2022 Field Work Planning:   

o The coordinator is working with BLM representative, Andrew Breibart, along 

with other program partners, to complete NEPA, CWA, ESA and SHPO on wet 

meadow project sites for the 2022 field season.  

o Contractors to perform specialized earthwork, log work, and fencing have been 

contacted for the 2022 field season, including Stonefly Earthworks, Range Works 

LLC and Grizzly Fence. The coordinator is working with staff to complete 

contracting and finalize schedule.  



 

2 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_01.14.22.CC 

o The RMYCC crew has been secured for two weeks of time to conduct Wet 

Meadows work at Bohr Flats. Cheryl is finalizing a contract with them. 

o Rock and logs are being ordered and scheduled in accordance with the 2022 

construction plan and calendar, along with retaining heavy equipment, such as 

dozers for plug and spreads. 

 

• Outreach: 

o With the UGRWCD assuming responsibility of the Wet Meadows Program, the 

current website will expire, and information transferred to the District’s website. 

The current webpage for the program on the district’s webpage is being built out 

by staff with narrative, videos, partner information, contact info and a map. 

o The GUSG Summit at Western will take place on April 4th and 5th and will be 

attended by the Coordinator and partners at CPW and FWS. 

o Wet Meadows partners will participate in workshops for private landowners 

interested in wet meadows work through the Bird Conservancy at the end of 

February in Gunnison, Glade Park and Hotchkiss. 

• Continuity & Vision: 

o The program will no longer be entering into grant agreements for work outside of 

the basin, but we are, in good faith, going to complete our commitments under our 

current grant agreements per the General Manager’s direction. 

o In collaboration with BIO-Logic, an environmental consultant and long-term 

partner of the Wet Meadows Program, the coordinator is building out a project 

site management tool to track site analysis, design, construction, maintenance, 

monitoring, etc., at each site over time.  

o The coordinator is working with primary Wet Meadows partners to revise and 

develop a 2022 vision, objectives and goals document that will guide the selection 

and prioritization of stream reaches for restoration.  

 



AGENDA ITEM 5 
Scientific Endeavors



AGENDA ITEM 5 
Long Lake Work Group Update



AGENDA ITEM 5
Gunnison Basin Roundtable Update



AGENDA ITEM 5
Gunnison River Festival Update



AGENDA ITEM 6 
BREAK



AGENDA ITEM 7
Miscellaneous Matters

14



AGENDA ITEM 7 
Infrastructure Bill (Water)



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   UGRWCD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

DATE:  January 14, 2022  

SUBJECT:  Bipartisan Infrastructure Bill (Water) 

 

Following is a summary of the General Manager’s current understanding around the availability 

of water related infrastructure funding in the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Bill.  This summary 

was provided during a December 16, 2021, Colorado Water Congress Member Call by Keith 

McCloughlin of the Colorado Water Resource and Power Development Authority (CWRPDA).   

 

The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Bill provides $973B for water related infrastructure. 

 

Colorado’s Water Portion is $6.15B over 5 years and $688M for CWRPDA to distribute 

via the State Revolving Loan Funds.   

• $688M to CWRPDA via State Revolving Loan Fund.  They are waiting for guidance 

from EPA but hope to be able to distribute in first quarter of 2022. 

 

o Water Storage Projects: Are not a part of this $688M. Reservoirs are not 

eligible to receive funding from the State Revolving Fund and therefore are not 

included in this $688M. 

  

• State of Colorado Water Infrastructure Allotment: $6.15B over 5 years 

 

Year 1: $121.3M. 

o $35M in additional base drinking water funds over what State normally receives 

which is $21M. 

o Clean Water - $14M.  This is in addition to $13M the State normally receives. 

o Drinking water lead service line replacement - $56M.  Can also include survey 

work to identify where lead lines need to be replaced. 

o Drinking Water Emerging Contaminants - $15M.  Geared toward PFAS. 

o Clean Water/Waste Water - $753,000 geared toward PFAS 

 

Year 2 (2022-23): Allotment to Colorado estimated to go up by 16% 

 

Year 3 (2023-24): Allotment to Colorado estimated to go up by  9% 

 

Year 4 (2024-25): Allotment to Colorado estimated to go up by  8% 



 

 

 

Year 5 (2025-26): Allotment to Colorado estimated to go up by  8% 

 

 

• Reimbursement Method ($121.3M): As Grant Dollars.  

  

o There will be a public process to determine priority of public programs.  Will seek 

stakeholder engagement and want it to be very public/transparent process. 

 

• Who can apply? Deadlines?  Coming at a later date based upon guidance. 

 

• Emerging Contaminants (eg., PFAS) are 100% grant dollars (i.e., no match required).  

Expensive to mitigate so want to get it done. 

 

• Build American/Buy American – tied to all funding. Guidance forthcoming. 

 

• Project Readiness: Looking for projects that are somewhat ready to go.  Don’t need to 

be “shovel ready” but it would be good for folks to dust off any plans they have and if 

they want them to go forward, start getting prepared. 

 

• Davis-Bacon - will apply to all infrastructure funds. 

 

• Storage & Conveyance Projects will likely be coming through USBR.  It will likely 

be a while before the money will be put out.  Gives interested parties time to understand 

where the pots of money are to fund infrastructure needs. 

 

• Infrastructure Funding Being Distributed via Reclamation: 

 

o $8.3B added to Reclamation’s Budget.  Huge increase as USBR budget has never 

reached over $1B. 

o Reclamation has started to roll out some of these dollars.  Had their listening 

sessions last week.   

o Funding distributed over five years: 

▪ $3.2B – Aging Infrastructure.  Incorporated into new aging infrastructure 

account. Based upon what Reclamation Projects need. There will be a 

funding announcement and application process.   

▪ $1.15B – Storage and Conveyance.  Targeted at WIN storage program at 

Reclamation.  Includes $100M for small storage program (equivalent to 

Title 16).  Conveyance has to be associated with increased storage (grd 

water or surface water). 

▪ $1B for Title 16 – SMALL Water Recycling and Reuse.  

▪ $450M for LARGE water recycling program (earmarked for major project 

in Los Angeles). 

▪ $250M for desalination 

▪ $1B for rural water projects. 

▪ $500M for dam safety projects. 



 

 

▪ $300M for drought implementation. $250M for lower basin.  $50M for 

Upper Basin. 

▪ $400M for WaterSMART.  Available for everybody in west.  50/50 cost 

share.  Traditionally been smaller dollar amounts. Asking them to bump 

up to $5M which is their statutory cap. 

▪ $100M for Cooperative Water Management Program.  Helpful on forest 

management side and interaction with other stakeholder groups working 

on forest health issues. 

▪ $250M for aquatic ecosystem restoration program.  65 % federal cost 

share. 

▪ $100M for multi-benefit watershed projects.  Not clear how this is 

different from aquatic ecosystem above. Not sure if they are going to put 

into one pot.  Waiting for more information. 

▪ $50M for Colorado River Endangered Fish Recovery Program. Will help 

for erosion of funds that happened out of the Basin States Fund. 

▪ $500M USDA Program (PL566) – allows for investment in infrastructure.  

▪ USACE Infrastructure Program - $200M. Not sure what Colorado got. 

 

o Understanding is that Reclamation will release money in 5 equal chunks/portions. 

o No money will pass through Colorado Water Conservation Board. 

o Reclamation currently has $200M for drought.  Reprogrammed another $100M 

for drought.  These funds are not going to come out very fast.   

o Interested in Reclamation Funding? Have your projects clearly developed so that 

you can expedite your own projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM 7 
Gunnison Headwater Wetland Mitigation Bank



AGENDA ITEM 7 
Homestake Mining Proposal



AGENDA ITEM 7 
Office Renovation for Watershed 

Program Coordinator



AGENDA ITEM 7 
Spencer Business Park Condo Association



 

1 
 

 
SPENCER AVENUE BUSINESS PARK CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION  

AGENDA - ANNUAL MEETING 
January 6, 2022 

 

The Spencer Avenue Business Park Condominium Association conducted its annual 
meeting on Thursday, January 6, 2022.  In attendance were Sonja Chavez, Dan 
McKenna, Bill Nesbitt, and Jill Steele 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 11:05 a.m. 

 
2. CONSIDERATION OF FEBRUARY 2, 2021 ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES 

 
Dan McKenna moved and Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the February 2, 
2021 annual meeting minutes. The motion carried. 

 
3. REPORTS OF OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 

 
Wells Fargo December 2021 Bank Statement:  
 

Jill Steele said that the statement was included for informational purposes and 
shows a balance of $13,674.13 in the Association’s checking account. 
 

2021 Financial Report – Profit & Loss: 
 

Jill Steele provided the information showing a net income in 2021 of $2,732.99. 
 
4. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 
Officers re-elected by acclamation:  Sonja Chavez President, Bill Nesbitt 
Secretary/Treasurer. 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS 

 
Repairs made to property in 2020 and 2021: 
 

Foundation Repair 
Building trim stained, two coats 

Parking lot striped 
 
The UGRWCD has paid for the above repairs for a total of $20,123.10.  A bill was 

prepared for B.A.M.P. LLC’s half, or $10,061.55.  
 



 

2 
 

Because there is a healthy 2021 end of year unused balance of $13,674.13 in the 
Spencer Avenue Condo Association checking account under which both the Upper 

Gunnison District and BAMP contribute an equal amount of funding on a monthly 
basis, it was decided to distribute $5,000 to each of the two parties.  BAMP will then 

write a check to the District for $10,061.55 for BAMP’s portion of the 2020-2021 
building repair and maintenance total. 
 

Dan McKenna moved and Bill Nesbitt seconded to distribute $5,000 to each of 
the two parties.  BAMP will then write a check to the District for $10,061.55 for 
BAMP’s portion of the 2020-2021 building repair and maintenance total.  The 

motion carried. 
 

These items of old business are still of concern and are discussed under New 
Business: 
 

Roof/French drain leak causing ice fall hazard 
Soffit rotting under covered porch area 

BLM overnight parking 
BLM use of non-pedestrian grass hill to access BLM alley parking  

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

Snow removal contract with Great Escape Landscape (Geoff  Berg): 

A copy of the contract was included in the packet. 

Insurance – American Family Insurance monthly premium increase from $368.75 to 
$444.50 ($75.75 or 20.54% increase): Dan McKenna said that his research revealed 

that it is not worthwhile changing insurance companies as the rates are very similar. 

Parking Lot – Need to empty overnight for plowing: Dan McKenna will speak with his 
tenants and ask them not to leave vehicles parked overnight when it is obvious that a 
snowstorm is coming in and especially on weekends when we are expecting snow. 

 

Repairs to property needed in 2022: 
 

Bullet Construction LLC’s Roof Inspection dated 6/11/21: The soffit rotting and the 
French drain leaks will be fixed in conjunction with the roof repair. 
 

Bill Nesbitt asked Dan McKenna if he was okay moving forward with obtaining bids 
for the roof repair.  Dan said he was. 
 

Sonja Chavez said that UGRWCDhas problems with the furnaces in Suite B because 
the angle of the venting pipe causes water and moisture to not drain properly and 

eventually results in the furnace not firing/lighting.  When the roof is repaired, she 
plans to raise up those venting pipes in order to correct the problem. Dan McKenna 
didn’t note any issues in Suite A. 



 

3 
 

 
Consideration of stairs of some kind in grass hill area for use by tenants of Suite A: 

 
It was decided to not provide additional access over the grass hill since it was not an 

official ingress/egress and would just result in additional snow removal and 
maintenance issues, the UGRWCD did want an access point in this location, and 
tenants of Suite A have an alternative way of accessing their BLM parking lot behind 

B&B Printers (i.e., Suite A has a back door to the street).  It was decided to block off 
the hill using an orange fence or to rope if off to further discourage use. 

 

7.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

President Sonja Chavez adjourned the meeting at 10:45 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

 
____________________________     
Sonja R. Chavez, President     

 
 
 

_____________________________ 
William J. Nesbitt, Treasurer 



1 <---- Month to Summarize (change this number to look at a different month)
PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO REVISION

Daily Summary for Month --> Jan

1st Fill  2nd Fill  Other Aspinall BP Accnt AU Accnt 1st Fill Contract Tot 1st fill

Day of 
Month

Silver 
Jack 

Reservoir 
& Juniors 
In Priority 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

TP 
Releases 
from TP 
1st Fill 

(1=Yes, 
0=No)

Excess 
Released 
TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat Inflow 
(cfs)

Gun 
Tunnel 
(GT) 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat Inflow 
and TP 

Inflow (cfs)

3-Day 
Average 

Excess TP 
Inflow and 

AU Nat 
Inflow (cfs)

3-Day Ave. 
GT 

Shortage 
after AU Nat 
Inflow and 
TP Inflow   

(cfs)

TP Res. 
Content 

(af)

TP - 
USGS 
outflow 

(cfs)

TP 
Computed 

Inflow 
(cfs)

1st Fill - 
Storage - 
in TP (af)

2nd Fill - 
Storage -

in TP 
(af)

Other 
Account 
Storage 
in TP - 

Storage -
(af)

AU 
Storage 
in TP - 

(af)

SJ Res 
Content 

(af)

SJ Inflow 
to 

Reservoir 
Storage 

(cfs)

BP - 
Storage - 
in SJ (af)

AU Water -
Storage - 
in SJ (af)

BM Res 
Content (af)

MP Res 
Content 

(af)

CR Res 
Content 

(af)

AU 
Change In 
Storage 

(af)

Computed 
rel from CR 

(cfs)

AU inflow 
below TP 
& with AU 
Aug Rel 

(cfs) #REF!

UGRWCD 
Contract 

water      
(af)

Gun. River 
below 
East 

Portal     
(cfs)

Total 
Gunnison 

Tunnel 
Divs (cfs)

GT Divs - 
AU inflow 
minus TP 
released 

inflow (cfs)

GT Divs - 
TP 

Released 
Inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
SJ 

Storage 
Inflow by 
AU Exch 

(cfs)

GT Divs -  
UGRWCD 
Contract 

Water Rel 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
Rel from 

2nd Fill for 
Rec/Fish  

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
1st Fill 

Credit in 
BM     
(cfs) #REF!

Remain. 
1st Fill 

Credits in 
TP and 

AU      (af)
(1) (2) (3) (5) (6) (7) (8) (11) (14) (15) (19) (25) (30) (34) (36) (39) (43) (47) (49) (77) (100) (124) (125) (127) #REF! #REF! (128) (131) (132) (133) (134) (135) (136) (137) #REF! (140)

1 1 1 512 0 621 0 58,666 70 56 49,456 9,210 0 0 1,802 6 1,802 0 232,616 105,520 16,218 419 315 456   315 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
2 1 1 402 0 530 0 58,638 69 55 49,319 9,320 0 0 1,817 7 1,817 0 232,851 105,535 16,169 201 315 347   315 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
3 1 1 393 0 436 0 58,638 69 69 49,183 9,455 0 0 1,830 7 1,830 0 232,992 105,520 16,198 155 315 325   315 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
4 1 1 381 0 392 0 58,624 68 61 49,048 9,576 0 0 1,844 7 1,844 0 233,508 105,111 16,235 146 315 321   315 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
5 1 1 269 0 348 0 58,666 69 90 48,912 9,755 0 0 1,854 5 1,854 0 233,415 105,006 16,299 -136 316 179   316 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
6 1 1 327 0 326 0 58,681 71 78 48,771 9,910 0 0 1,867 7 1,867 0 233,320 105,066 16,339 7 317 249   316 1 1 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
7 1 1 746 0 447 0 58,695 74 81 48,625 10,070 0 0 1,880 7 1,880 0 233,885 105,369 16,310 838 317 666   317 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
8 1 1 377 0 483 0 58,681 73 66 48,479 10,202 0 0 1,893 7 1,893 0 233,650 105,763 16,287 136 316 312   316 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
9 1 1 458 0 527 0 58,666 73 66         234,026 105,763 16,209 298 327 405   315 12 12 0  0     
10 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
11 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
12 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
13 1 1 0   0  
14 1 1 0   0  
15 1 1 0   0  
16 1 1 0   0  
17 1 1 0   0  
18 1 1 0   0  
19 1 1 0   0  
20 1 1 0   0  
21 1 1 0   0  
22 1 1 0   0  
23 1 1 0   0  
24 1 1 0   0  
25 1 1 0   0  
26 1 1 0   0  
27 1 1 0   0  
28 1 1 0   0  
29 1 1 0   0  
30 1 1 0   0  
31 1 1 0   0  

Total 31 31 3,866 0 4,110 0 635 621 52 2,063 2,855 3,260 2,840 15 15 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tot (af) 7,667 0 8,152 0 1,260 1,232 103 4,091 5,663 6,466 5,633 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 1 1 269 0 326 0 58,624 0 55 48,479 9,210 0 0 1,802 5 1,802 0 232,616 105,006 16,169 -136 0 179 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 105,924
Max 1 1 746 0 621 0 58,695 74 90 49,456 10,202 0 0 1,893 7 1,893 0 234,026 105,763 16,339 838 327 666 0 0 317 12 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 105,924

Annual Summary (all values in ac-ft)  Note: Reservoir content is the end of the month content 
(days) (days) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af)

Nov 30 30 34,379 0 32,433 0 58,737 4,428 4,591 54,159 4,578 0 0 1,713 300 1,713 0 220,759 110,430 15,977 11,721 21,006 30,392  20,402 604 604 0 0 0 0  105,924
Dec 31 31 26,537 0 26,118 0 58,695 4,564 4,521 49,595 9,100 0 0 1,790 166 1,790 0 232,145 105,687 16,102 6,769 21,040 23,245  19,811 1,229 1,229 0 0 0 0  105,924
Jan 31 31     1,260    5,663   5,633 30       
Feb 28 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Mar 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Apr 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
May 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Jun 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Jul 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Aug 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Sep 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Oct 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Total 365 365 60,916 0 58,551 0 10,252 9,112 465 18,490 47,710 53,637 45,847 1,863 1,833 0 0 0 0 0
Min 28 28 0 0 0 0 58,695 0 0 49,595 9,100 0 0 1,790 0 1,790 0 232,145 105,687 16,102 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 105,924
Max 31 31 26,537 0 26,118 0 58,695 4,564 4,521 49,595 9,100 0 0 1,790 166 1,790 0 232,145 105,687 16,102 6,769 21,040 23,245 0 19,811 1,229 1,229 0 0 0 0 0 105,924

Type of Water Diverted into Tunnel

TO

Taylor Park Reservoir Aspinall Unit GUNNISON TUNNEL ALLOCATION
River Call Average Flow Reservoir

Silver Jack Reservoir
Reservoir Reservoir Contents Total Aspinall Unit Inflow Streamflow and Divs



Generated for Beverly Richards
on 01/13/2022

Reports

Monthly Energy Production Report

UGRWCD

Gunnison, CO
This report provides energy production for January.

Week Peak Power Energy Produced

01/01/2022 - 01/07/2022 4.74 kW 53.8 kWh

01/08/2022 - 01/14/2022 5.60 kW 115 kWh

01/15/2022 - 01/21/2022 0 W 0 Wh

01/22/2022 - 01/28/2022 0 W 0 Wh

01/29/2022 - 01/31/2022 0 W 0 Wh

January 2022 Total: 169 kWh

Previous Month Total: 316 kWh

Year to Date: 169 kWh

Lifetime Production: 26.0 MWh

Your Carbon Offset for this month: 258.0 lbs

You have offset the equivalent of: 3 Trees

Browser not supported

Use Microsoft Edge, Google Chrome, Firefox or Safari to access the fresh new look of MyEnlighten with the
exciting new features.

Ok, Got It





























































AGENDA ITEM 8
Citizen Comments



AGENDA ITEM 9
Future Meetings

28



FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENTS

 Colorado Water Congress Annual Convention in Aurora-January 26-29, 2022
 Watershed Management Planning Committee-February 14, 2022 at 1:30 PM
 UGRWCD Grant Applications are due by 5 PM-February 15, 2022
 UGRWCD Board of Directors Meeting (tentative)-February 28, 2022 at 5:30 PM
 Grant Committee meets for grants review-March 2, 2022 at 3:00 PM
 Watershed Management Planning Committee-March 14, 2022 at 1:30 PM
 UGRWCD Board of Directors Meeting (tentative)-March 28, 2022 at 5:30 PM



AGENDA ITEM 10
Summary of Action Items

29



3 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE  

REGULAR SEMI-ANNUAL MEETING 
Monday, January 24, 2022 

7:20 p.m. 1. Call to Order 

7:21 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval 

7:23 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed for  

discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board member or 

citizen.  
• Approval of July 26, 2021 Minutes
• Upper Gunnison Water Activity Enterprise 2021 Budget Summary
• Adoption of Resolution 2022-1 to Set Posting Place

• Consideration of Expenses

7:30 p.m. 4. Meridian Lake Reservoir Update 

7:40 p.m. 5. Adoption of 2022 Budget 

7:55 p.m. 6. Citizen Comments 

8:00 p.m. 7. Miscellaneous Matters 

8:10 p.m. 8. Summary of Meeting Action Items 

8:15 p.m. 9. Adjournment 

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  All times are approximate.  

Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are recorded, and action can be taken on any item. The board may address individual 

agenda items at any time or in any order to accommodate the needs of the board and the audience. Persons with special needs due to a 

disability are requested to call the District at (970)641-6065 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   



WAE AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items

31



 

1 

 

 

UPPER GUNNISON RIVER WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR SEMI-ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES 

July 26, 2021 

 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Activity Enterprise conducted a 

semi-annual meeting on Monday, July 26, 2021 at 7:15 p.m. in the District offices, 210 West 

Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO, 81230. 

 

Board members present:  Sara Bergstrom, Rosemary Carroll, Joellen Fonken, Rebie Hazard, 

Stacy McPhail, Julie Nania, Bill Nesbitt, John Perusek, Don Sabrowski, and Andy Spann. 

 

Board members absent:  Michelle Pierce 

 

Others participating:  

 

Sonja Chavez, General Manager  

John McClow, General Counsel 

Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist  

Jill Steele, Office Manager 

Sue Uerling, Administrative Assistant 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail called the meeting to order at 7:15 p.m.   

 

2.      AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Andy Spann seconded approval of the agenda.  

The motion carried.   

 

3.      CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:   

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail asked if there were any items to be removed for discussion from 

the consent agenda.  None were requested. 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Rosemary Carroll seconded approval of the 

consent agenda items.  The motion carried. 

 



 

2 

 

 

4.      CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION APPOINTING FINANCIAL OFFICERS 

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail referenced the resolution included in the packet and asked if there 

were any questions.  None were brought forward. 

 

Director Rebie Hazard and Director Nania seconded approval of WAE Resolution 2021-03 

appointing the WAE financial officers as follows:  Michelle Pierce, Board President; Stacy 

McPhail, Board Vice President; John Perusek, Board Secretary; Bill Nesbitt, Board 

Treasurer; and, Sonja Chavez, General Manager.  The motion carried. 

 

5. MERIDIAN LAKE RESERVOIR UPDATE:   

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez reported that she made a field visit to Meridian Lake on July 8, 

2021 and it measured 9,345 acre-feet at that time, which was 66 acre-feet lower than last year. 

The Board was reminded that rates were set in January 2021 as follows: The initial cost is $3,500 

per base unit and the annual, administrative fee for 2021 is $55.00 per base unit. 

 

6.      MISCELLANEOUS MATTER:  

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail asked if there were any miscellaneous matters. Director Joellen 

Fonken asked if the WAE loan had been paid off and it was confirmed that the WAE operating 

loan of $75,000 has been paid to the UGRWCD.  Water Resource Specialist Bev Richards 

reported that to date, there have been 634 based units sold with 333 available units remaining.   

 

7.      CITIZEN COMMENTS:  

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail asked if there were any citizen comments, and none were brought 

forward. 

 

8.      ADJOURMENT:   

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail adjourned the Water Activity Enterprise meeting at 7:21 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,    APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________   _________________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary    Stacy McPhail, Vice President 







 

Upper Gunnison River Water Activity Enterprise
Expenses for Approval

1/16/2022

Name Account Amount

Sonja R. Chavez
MLR Operations

33.60$               

Gunnsion County Clerk and Recorder 
Office Expenses

13.00                 

Crested Butte News
Legal Publication

11.21                 

Sonja R. Chavez
MLR Operations

32.48                 

Upper Gunnison River Water 

Conservancy District 3rd Quarter 2021 Cost Share
7,193.00            

Gunnsion County Clerk and Recorder 
Office Expenses

26.00                 

Upper Gunnison River Water 

Conservancy District 4th Quarter 2021 Cost Share
8,418.00            

 TOTAL EXPENSES FOR APPROVAL
 $     15,727.29 

\\UGRWCDSRV\Docs\Master\Financial Files\Financial Spreadsheets\2022 Spreadsheets\WAE Expenses for 

Approval.xlsx



WAE AGENDA ITEM 4
Meridian Lake Reservoir Update



WAE AGENDA ITEM 5 
Adoption of 2022 WAE Budget

36







WAE AGENDA ITEM 6
Citizen Comments



WAE AGENDA ITEM 7
Miscellaneous Matters



WAE AGENDA ITEM 8
Summary of Meeting Action Items



WAE AGENDA ITEM 9 
Adjournment


	Agenda - Regular Meeting - January 24, 2022
	Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of December 8, 2021 Minutes
	Monthly Budget Summary
	Consideration of Operating Expenses
	Consideration of Non-Operating Expenses

	Agenda Item 4 - Legal and Legislative Matters
	Agenda Item 5 - General Manager and Committee Reports
	General Manager's Report
	Treasurer's Report - Verbal
	Executive Committee Report
	2022 Taylor Local Users Group - Letters of Interest and References
	Action on 2022 TLUG Representatives

	Watershed Management Planning Committee
	Grant Committee
	Education and Outreach Update
	Basin Water Supply Information - January 2021
	Wet Meadows Project Update
	Scientific Endeavors
	Long Lake Work Group
	Gunnison Basin Roundtable
	Gunnison River Festival Update

	Agenda Item 6 - Break
	Agenda Item 7 - Miscellaneous Matters
	Infrastructure Bill (Water)
	Gunnison Headwater Wetland Mitigation Bank
	Homestake Mining Proposal
	Office Renovation Update
	Spencer Condo Association Meeting Update - January 6, 2022
	Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet
	Monthly Energy Production Report - Solar Panels
	Newspaper Articles

	Agenda Item 8 - Citizen Comments
	Agenda Item 9 - Future Meetings
	Agenda Item 10 - Summary of Meeting Action Items
	Agenda - Water Activity Enterprise Meeting - January 25, 2021
	WAE Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of July 26, 2021 Minutes
	Upper Gunnison Water Activity Enterprise 2021 Budget Summary
	Adoption of Resolution 2022-1 to Set Posting Place
	Consideration of Operating and Non-operating Expenses

	WAE Agenda Item 4 - Meridian Lake Reservoir Update
	WAE Agenda Item 5 - Adoption of 2022 Budget
	WAE Agenda Item 6 - Citizen Comments
	WAE Agenda Item 7 - Miscellaneous Matters
	WAE Agenda Item 8 - Summary of Meeting Action Items
	WAE Agenda Item 9 - Meeting Adjournment



